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          1  CRIME AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: My name is Thomas

          3  White, and I am Chair of the Subcommittee on Crime

          4  and Substance Abuse.

          5                 Today's hearing will focus primarily

          6  on the Narcotics Initiatives of the New York City

          7  Police Department.

          8                 Back on February 24th of this year,

          9  Mayor Giuliani testified before the Subcommittee on

         10  Criminal Justice Drug Policy and Human Resources of

         11  the House of Representatives.

         12                 In his testimony, the Mayor discussed

         13  such topics as the location of the Narcotic

         14  Initiative, the criteria for choosing neighborhoods

         15  to become part of the Initiative, the number of

         16  arrests made, the type and quality of drugs seized,

         17  as well as new strategies put in place by the NYPD

         18  to deal with the drug problem.

         19                 On the national level crime has

         20  declined considerably, but in many districts there

         21  seem to be an increase in drug-related crimes.

         22                 Our goal is to find out the

         23  relationship between such crimes and the sale and

         24  use of drugs, and what initiatives are being used to

         25  combat these crimes.
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Good

          3  afternoon, Chairman White and members of the

          4  Council's Subcommittee on Crime and Substance Abuse.

          5  My name is Assistant Chief Charles Kammerdener, the

          6  commanding officer of the Narcotics Division. With

          7  me here today is Sergeant Thomas Tuffy from our

          8  Legal Bureau, and Lieutenant Ray Lutsky from the

          9  Narcotics Division.

         10                 I am here today on behalf of the

         11  Police Commissioner to answer questions relating to

         12  the ongoing narcotic initiatives. Before I address

         13  the progress of our anti-drug initiatives, I would

         14  like to take a moment to outline some of the

         15  underlying objectives and operation realities

         16  inherent in our Narcotic Division's overall mission.

         17                 A good place to begin is a fairly

         18  well reported study involving persons arrested and

         19  processed in Manhattan's Central Booking facility.

         20  Over the past ten years, the sampling of males

         21  arrested for committing all categories of crime were

         22  tested for drug use within a 24-hour period, from

         23  their time of arrest at Manhattan Central Booking.

         24                 Significantly, between 74 percent and

         25  87 percent tested positive for the use of illegal
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          2  drugs.

          3                 This study highlights the

          4  relationship between drug abuse and broader spectrum

          5  of crime.

          6                 It is this relationship which is the

          7  focus of the Narcotics Division's mission. Our

          8  mission is to reduce crime, fear and disorder, while

          9  improving the quality of life within the City of New

         10  York.

         11                 We accomplish this mission by

         12  identifying and dismantling organizations

         13  responsible for the illegal sale of drugs on our

         14  streets. In doing so, we are acknowledging narcotics

         15  enforcement, not merely as an end in itself, but as

         16  a tool for investigating and reducing crime in

         17  cooperation with other department units, state and

         18  federal agencies in the community we serve.

         19                 Our approach to narcotic

         20  investigations is comprehensive. It encompasses from

         21  the bottom up and from the top down strategies of

         22  drug organizations.

         23                 In cooperation with other Police

         24  Department units, we pursue these organizations from

         25  the street to the supplier, and to our direct
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          2  participation from joint federal and state task

          3  forces, we identify both the importers and their

          4  distributors.

          5                 The basic investigatory component of

          6  the Narcotic Division is known as the narcotic

          7  module. Typically a module consists of one sergeant,

          8  six investigators and two undercover police

          9  officers.

         10                 We presently have 271 precinct-based

         11  enforcement modules operating throughout the five

         12  boroughs at the present time, of which 173 are

         13  assigned within Narcotic Initiative precincts, 63.8

         14  percent of the total.

         15                 Each module carries out our mission

         16  by conducting investigations within a specifically

         17  defined area. The modules investigation and

         18  enforcement activity are what we call turf based,

         19  which means that the module is held strictly

         20  accountable for targeting, dismantling the drug

         21  gangs operating within their geographical turf or

         22  area of assignment.

         23                 We define a narcotic gang as any

         24  group of three or more individuals working together

         25  to sell and distribute narcotics.
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          2                 Drug gangs are identified and

          3  subsequently targeted by complaints received from

          4  the public, as well as from information received

          5  from confidential informants, and other units of the

          6  Department or law enforcement agencies.

          7                 Our investigative and enforcement

          8  activities are directed towards mapping the

          9  structure of these drug gangs, including their

         10  sources of supply, distribution outlets and related

         11  criminal activities.

         12                 Since 1997, 1,246 gangs have been

         13  identified by Narcotics Division modules. To date,

         14  1,054 gangs have been dismantled, and efforts are

         15  continually ongoing to identify new gangs reported

         16  for a monthly narcotic gang database.

         17                 This is then the basic operational

         18  mode and focus of the Narcotic Division operations

         19  throughout the City.

         20                 Now, I would like to turn to the

         21  initiatives. As more resources were devoted to the

         22  narcotic enforcement throughout the early 1990s, and

         23  the Department strategists became more aware of the

         24  relationship between such efforts and the reduction

         25  of index crimes, like robbery, burglary and assault,
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          2  the need for establishment of special initiatives in

          3  most affected areas became obvious.

          4                 We began to establish such

          5  initiatives in September of 1996. Within these

          6  special initiative areas we assigned a greater

          7  number of modules in what was previously assigned

          8  and deployed within the same are.

          9                 This enabled us to narrow the

         10  geographical area for which an individual module was

         11  responsible and gave the modules an opportunity to

         12  focus investigations within their assigned

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 We established the first of these

         15  initiatives in the 7th and 9th Precincts on

         16  Manhattan's Lower East Side, in the Bronx, Brooklyn

         17  South, Brooklyn North and Manhattan North.

         18                 In September of 1996, the Northern

         19  Manhattan Initiative took the initiative concept

         20  several steps further than had previously been

         21  envisioned.

         22                 In addition to our own resources, the

         23  mission has been expanded to include state and

         24  federal law enforcement agencies working together

         25  under one unit commander.
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          2                 An initiative intelligence center was

          3  established consisting of the state-of-the-art

          4  computer complex to provide investigators with

          5  access to various NYPD state and federal databases.

          6                 The Initiative consists of the 45

          7  modules assigned to three precincts, 15 modules in

          8  each of those precincts.

          9                 November of 1997, when the second

         10  initiative was established in the Bronx called the

         11  South Bronx Initiative, and it became operational in

         12  the 40, 41 and 43 precincts and consisted of 38

         13  modules. We also established the Southeast Queens

         14  Initiative in the 103, 105 and 113 precincts

         15  consistent of 30 modules.

         16                 In July of 1998 we established a

         17  second initiative in the Northern Manhattan --

         18  Manhattan North under the banner of the Central

         19  Harlem Initiative.

         20                 This Initiative became operational in

         21  the 28 and 32 Precincts, 30 modules assigned and we

         22  established the Staten Island Initiative to cover

         23  the 120 Precinct with 12 modules.

         24                 February 1999 we set up four

         25  additional initiatives: The Central Bronx Initiative
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          2  in the 42, 48 and 52 Precincts with 22 modules

          3  assigned; the East Harlem Initiative in the 23 and

          4  25 Precincts with 16 modules assigned; the Brooklyn

          5  South Initiative in the 60 and 72 Precincts, 12

          6  modules assigned, and the Northwest Queens

          7  initiative in the 110, 114 and 115 Precincts with 15

          8  modules assigned.

          9                 The formula for targeting the

         10  initiative areas is straightforward. It is based

         11  upon the preliminary analysis of narcotic

         12  complaints, homicide and non-fatal shootings.

         13                 Further analysis takes into account

         14  robberies assaults and burglaries and their

         15  relationship to narcotic prone locations.

         16                 There are now a total of 13 such

         17  initiatives throughout the City. The deployment

         18  assures that neighborhoods with the greatest need

         19  are being given the resources necessary to reduce

         20  crime.

         21                 Since September of 1996, the Narcotic

         22  Division personnel assigned to these initiatives

         23  have been responsible for 68,926 arrests. In

         24  addition to the Narcotic Division components, in

         25  order to enhance the work of these initiatives, the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  CRIME AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE

          2  Department has established what we call tracer

          3  units. These units are comprised of uniformed

          4  officers assigned within precincts, their specific

          5  mission is to work in tandem with narcotic

          6  enforcement units.

          7                 An individual tracer unit consists of

          8  one lieutenant, four sergeants and 32 uniformed

          9  police officers. There are currently 32 tracer units

         10  operational throughout the City.

         11                 Tracer unit members, both mobile and

         12  on foot had their activities coordinated on a daily

         13  basis through control with the tracer unit

         14  commander, the Narcotics Initiative Commander and

         15  also the Precinct Commander. Specifically the tracer

         16  units are responsible for the quality of life

         17  enforcement in the targeted area.

         18                 This includes conducting vertical

         19  patrols at Housing Authority developments, locations

         20  signed up for the Trespass Affidavit Program,

         21  vehicle checkpoints and response to narcotic-related

         22  radio runs.

         23                 It also includes assisting narcotic

         24  modules in executing search warrants and stabilizing

         25  the area with a sustained uniform presence.
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          2                 Tracer units have been responsible

          3  for 30,255 arrests since the inception in September

          4  of 1996.

          5                 Our efforts have also been given a

          6  strong assist by the use of civil enforcement

          7  initiatives. Among them are the use of the Nuisance

          8  Abatement Statute and eviction laws to remove drug

          9  dealers from storefronts, apartments and businesses

         10  that permit drug dealing on their premises.

         11                 The Nuisance Abatement Statute

         12  permits us to close through judicial proceedings any

         13  establishment where elicit drugs are sold or

         14  businesses that permit the sale of such drugs.

         15                 Using these statutes, 223 storefronts

         16  were closed in 1998, and 139 have been closed

         17  year-to-date.

         18                 Special initiatives, such as our

         19  smoke shop initiative in the early part of this year

         20  identified citywide and closed 70 storefront

         21  locations through Nuisance abatement.

         22                 In a further effort to focus our

         23  resources in the most affected areas, we established

         24  the model block program. This program is operational

         25  on 21 city blocks, identified as having long-term
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          2  entrenched narcotics problems.

          3                 There are model blocks in all

          4  boroughs. The model block program is designed to

          5  operate in three phases. During the first phase, our

          6  modules identify the gang's responsible for the drug

          7  activity on the block, and we initiate buying

          8  operations, issue search warrants, and make arrests

          9  and dismantle them.

         10                 Phase two, the Precinct Commanders

         11  establish uniform posts that block boundaries,

         12  including pedestrian and vehicle checkpoints to

         13  prevent the return of dealers and the customers they

         14  serve.

         15                 Also part of phase two, the Community

         16  Affairs Division of the Department organizes

         17  residents to take back control of their block and

         18  coordinate with other agencies to improve conditions

         19  on the block, such as the installation of additional

         20  lighting or cleaning of vacant lots.

         21                 In phase three the block is opened

         22  and uniformed patrols are responsible for

         23  maintaining crime-free environments, cooperation

         24  with the establishment of tenant associations, and

         25  other community groups.
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          2                 There is also very close monitoring

          3  by the Narcotic modules that took down the original

          4  group.

          5                 The most recent innovation in our

          6  battery of enforcement initiatives has been the

          7  implementation of a homicide shooting reduction

          8  plan.

          9                 Implemented on May 21st of this year,

         10  upon the Police Commissioner's approval, this plan

         11  was undertaken in recognition of the fact that

         12  approximately one-half of the City's homicides for

         13  this year have occurred in a small number of

         14  precincts.

         15                 We have assigned a Narcotics Division

         16  module to operate directly out of the precinct

         17  detective squad in each of these precincts.

         18                 Each is to report to and work solely

         19  for the precinct detective squad commander.

         20                 Traditionally Narcotic Division

         21  modules have been used to develop information on

         22  shootings and homicides on a case-by-case basis.

         23  This new initiative attempts to prevent homicides by

         24  focusing resources in high incidence shooting

         25  locations.
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          2                 The hallmark of all of our various

          3  efforts and initiatives is that they are not carried

          4  out in isolation from one another, and information

          5  is shared and operations are coordinated at every

          6  level.

          7                 Within each City precinct, narcotics

          8  squad supervisors are required to meet weekly with

          9  precinct-based narcotic units know as NU teams, the

         10  precinct commander, the detective squad commander

         11  and the housing supervisor in precincts with housing

         12  developments in order to ensure a coordinated

         13  response to shootings, robberies and other crimes.

         14                 In conclusion, turf-based enforcement

         15  geared toward dismantling drug gangs has proven to

         16  be a major contributor to the 51 percent reduction

         17  in the index crime between 1993 and 1998.

         18                 Narcotic arrests are up from 65,000

         19  in 1993 to 130,000 in 1998. Index crimes have gone

         20  from 432,000 in 1993, to 213,000 in 1998. And this

         21  chart that I will provide for you would show a

         22  correlation that as narcotic arrests increase, index

         23  crime has proportionately decreased.

         24                 The numbers indicate that these

         25  strategies and initiatives are having a strong
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          2  impact on the quality of life experience by most New

          3  Yorkers. The formula is working. It is a formula

          4  based upon aggressive review and analysis with

          5  resources being assigned where results show that the

          6  need is greatest.

          7                 I believe that these results

          8  orientated strategies constituted the most

          9  appropriate formula for ensuring the quality of life

         10  for all City residents and safety in the

         11  neighborhoods they live in.

         12                 At this time I welcome any questions

         13  you might have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes, I see you

         15  have a chart there.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Could you describe

         18  that chart, please?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Sure.

         20                 This is reflecting all of our

         21  precincts throughout the City, and anything that is

         22  color coded is one of the Initiative precincts. This

         23  is what we call NMI, the Northern Manhattan

         24  Initiative. This is the Central Harlem Initiative

         25  over here. This was one of the first initiatives
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          2  that started in the Bronx, the 44 and the 46, which

          3  again went into the South Bronx initiative here, and

          4  one of the newer initiatives in the 42, 48 and 52

          5  precincts.

          6                 In Queens we originally started what

          7  we call SEQI, the Southeast Queens Initiative, in

          8  the 103, 113 and 105, and just recently in February

          9  of this year two additional precincts were added in

         10  the 114, 115 and 110.

         11                 This blue shaded area is SATCOM.

         12  Since the inception of SATCOM, this has been a

         13  narcotic initiative.

         14                 The original precincts in Brooklyn

         15  were the 70, 67 and 71, and just recently at the

         16  latter part of this year we added the 60 and the 72.

         17  The 120 started also the earlier part of this year.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Could you give me

         19  a definition of SATCOM, please.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Sure. I

         21  have here inspector Mike Gabriel from SATCOM. If he

         22  would like to answer that question.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. He is with

         24  the narcotic and detective enforcement.

         25                 MR. GABRIEL: SATCOM was a concept
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          2  that started in April of 1996. It placed all

          3  resources, being the Patrol Services, Narcotics

          4  Bureau, Detective Bureau and Housing Bureau under

          5  one commander, a two star chief who used to be the

          6  borough commander who is now called the Strategic

          7  and Tactical Commander in Brooklyn North, and all

          8  services in -- it is a pilot program. In the rest of

          9  the Police Department, Narcotics reports to the

         10  Narcotics Bureau, detectives report to the detective

         11  chief, in Brooklyn North everyone is reporting to

         12  one commander who is SATCOM, strategic and tactical

         13  commander.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you.

         15                 Okay, Chief I have a series of

         16  questions. I had a hearing on drug strategy three

         17  where we covered all five boroughs and the Planning

         18  Board, and we have people coming in, because one

         19  thing is they have all of these services available

         20  for the community, another is for them to know

         21  exactly what it is, and how they could participate

         22  in making their community as drug free as humanly

         23  possible.

         24                 So, the series of these questions,

         25  number one, is to bring us up to speed since drug
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          2  strategy, and the compiling information, and we will

          3  have another hearing where we will have the direct

          4  impact of all of the initiatives that are taken

          5  place as reflective by various community boards and

          6  precinct councils that will give the feedback.

          7                 Let me acknowledge the presence of

          8  Council Member Boyland, who has joined us from

          9  Brooklyn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So, the effort

         13  right at this particular moment is to find out what

         14  those initiatives are, how well we are doing, and

         15  where we are not doing so well, how can we do

         16  better, all right?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well,

         18  basically getting back to one of your first comments

         19  about the input from the community, that is

         20  basically why we go to certain locations from the

         21  community's complaints.

         22                 In 1998 we investigated 23 -- a

         23  little over 23,000 narcotic complaints. These are

         24  complaints, whether they are received by letter,

         25  whether they are received by telephone calls,
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          2  whether they give their name or whether it is

          3  anonymous, 23,000 people gave us information

          4  regarding a specific drug location, whether it be

          5  outside or inside a location. When we received each

          6  of those complaints, whether it be anonymous, or the

          7  person identifies himself or it is from a community

          8  leader, there is a specific procedure under which

          9  each one of those complaints is investigated. It is

         10  assigned to a detective for an investigation, there

         11  is specified computer database checks that are done,

         12  very specific observations and surveillances that

         13  are required, all of the investigative steps which

         14  are supervised by a sergeant and lieutenant are

         15  recorded on complaints follow-up reports, which is

         16  formal reports that specify each investigative step

         17  that is taken. Some of those investigations are

         18  filed for information and intelligence, some of them

         19  are unfounded and others lead to arrest or the

         20  identification of a group of individuals involved in

         21  narcotic trafficking, which may lead to a major

         22  investigation, and could also result in the

         23  execution of search warrants. But the basic thing of

         24  what we do is based upon information provided in

         25  these initial narcotic complaints.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Could you

          3  describe in more detail how the neighborhoods are

          4  selected for drug initiatives?

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF CHARLES KAMMERDENER:

          6  Basically what we do is we look at, one parameter is

          7  the number of narcotic complaints received, we have

          8  a breakdown to our computer databases, the number of

          9  narcotic complaints regardless of what source they

         10  come from in each of the precincts.

         11                 We also look at the number of

         12  shootings, the number of homicides, and also working

         13  very closely with the detectives and the homicide

         14  analysis unit of the Detective Bureau, the motive

         15  that might be behind those shootings or homicides.

         16  And when I say motive, when in doubt we are going to

         17  look at it that it might be narcotic related.

         18                 Specifically with our pin mapping

         19  that we have from our COMSTAT, if there is a

         20  shooting on the corner, we will know from pinmapping

         21  if there is a narcotic set or narcotic complaints in

         22  the immediate vicinity of that. So, looking at the

         23  times and the background that was the individual of

         24  the victim of the crime, who might have a narcotic

         25  history, or prior arrest for narcotics and so forth,
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          2  we will be able to get a good idea of whether that

          3  possibly is narcotic related.

          4                 We also look at robberies, the times

          5  of robberies, people that were arrested for

          6  committing those robberies, the results of those

          7  debriefings. Are they committing those robberies

          8  because of a narcotic need and so forth.

          9                 With burglaries, what type of

         10  property is taken. When we get somebody, what was

         11  behind the reason that they took this property? Is

         12  it because they are addicted to drugs and that is

         13  why they have to do the burglary. And by looking at

         14  all of these different parameters, that is how we

         15  choose which precinct requires more narcotic

         16  enforcement. Especially when we are talking about

         17  what we used to have, very blatant street sets,

         18  where you could actually have a few years ago people

         19  lined up on the block to buy drugs, it was very

         20  visible.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. All right.

         22                 Council Member Boyland.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         24  question based on some things that are going on

         25  within my community and I know you are hearing a lot
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          2  of things in the media, in terms of the search and

          3  seizure procedures that they are using when they do

          4  the random stopping of cars in certain communities,

          5  and I don't know if this is in your purview, but I

          6  would just like to get some background in terms of

          7  your being able to suspect, or how do you target

          8  certain cars, in terms of if they are driving down

          9  let's just say Atlantic Avenue and you have the

         10  barricade set up, what is the random determination

         11  in terms of who is going to be stopped, or how will

         12  you identify -- let's just say it is obvious if

         13  someone is swerving down the road that they may be

         14  intoxicated or using some sort of drugs, but if they

         15  are not and it is just 4:00, 5:00 and people are

         16  coming home, what kind of methods are you using in

         17  order to pull people over or which determine the

         18  location of those particular sites?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Sergeant

         20  Thomas Tuffy, Managing Attorney, Legislative Affairs

         21  Unit.

         22                 Prior to the chief getting into a

         23  specific answer to how stops are made in reference

         24  to narcotics, I just want to precede that by saying

         25  that the Law Department is in the midst right now of
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          2  answering out several questions concerning stops and

          3  policies involving stops and it is ongoing, so the

          4  chief is precluded from getting into some specific

          5  areas that it seems where you may be going toward.

          6                 However there is policies in place

          7  for narcotics and how they stop members of the

          8  public and what their basis --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, there is

         10  a policy?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Yes. He

         12  will be able to describe how they do what they do.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: But I

         15  sensed in your question that you may be going down

         16  the road toward search and seizure issues that may

         17  not be appropriate to be discussed at this time, so

         18  I will have to ask the chief to keep his answer --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So you are

         20  aware of what is going on within the community in

         21  terms of you have heard some of the complaints?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Well, my

         23  response is based on the fact that there is numerous

         24  investigations being conducted into these policies

         25  and there is other people, specifically the Law
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          2  Department, running that response for the City. So,

          3  therefore, they would be the appropriate people to

          4  discuss this with you.

          5                 However, certainly the Police

          6  Department and its Chief of Narcotics has a plan in

          7  how to address drug locations and suspicion and

          8  people suspected of drug use.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: While

         10  driving?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Well, I

         12  will let him answer it to the extent he feels he

         13  can, and to the extent that he can't we will have to

         14  request the information from the Law Department.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I will listen

         16  to his response.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Okay,

         18  the Narcotics Division investigators are not

         19  primarily involved in checkpoints, okay? Our

         20  involvement with vehicles, and we seized 563

         21  vehicles last year by asset forfeiture, is directly

         22  related to someone that is transporting drugs or

         23  narcotics in vehicles.

         24                 This is for the most part

         25  specifically related to an investigation that is
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          2  being conducted. We are not in uniform, and we are

          3  not involved in specifically checkpoints, and you

          4  might see uniformed patrol. And I know what you are

          5  speaking about with Atlantic Avenue, because I went

          6  through a checkpoint about two weeks ago.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It's like

          8  every week almost at some point, it is like a

          9  bottleneck at some point. And not that safety is not

         10  important, safety is extremely important, but, you

         11  know, we just hear complaints about people coming

         12  from Queens and coming from Manhattan, like, Council

         13  Member Boyland, I would love to come to your

         14  community but I have to go through the maze to get

         15  there.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: The

         17  checkpoints specifically are designed at a specific

         18  location at the direction of the Precinct Commander

         19  based upon a specific problem.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so

         21  there are complaints that are given from

         22  constituents, complaints that are given from

         23  whomever are the reports that you guys do once a

         24  month with the Mayor, in terms of you look at the

         25  numbers of maybe drugs, car thefts, grand larceny

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  CRIME AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE

          2  and things and then that is how you base the

          3  checkpoints; is that what you are saying to me?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well, I

          5  will let legal answer that because that is not

          6  within my purview.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Some --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: State your

          9  name again, I am sorry.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Thomas

         11  Tuffy, Sergeant Managing Attorney, Legislative

         12  Affairs.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: The Deputy

         15  Commissioner of Legal Matters for the Police

         16  Department.

         17                 There are several factors that go

         18  into determining where and when to conduct

         19  checkponts and I heard you use various words and

         20  random and so forth, there is a lot of rules that go

         21  into it that we are required to follow based on

         22  constitutional law, and we do in fact follow them.

         23                 We often have legal representatives

         24  either available to the people conducting the stops

         25  or even present at certain times.
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          2                 So, to go into it any further and go

          3  into specifics about Atlantic Avenue wouldn't be

          4  appropriate.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just used

          6  Atlantic Avenue as an example. It is happening

          7  interborough, it happens everywhere, I assume.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: We are

          9  certainly open to discuss it at a later time, but

         10  for the purposes of this hearing we have narcotics

         11  representatives here and for the most part they

         12  don't conduct those kind of stops. Their stops are

         13  based on investigation, people who are identified,

         14  and vehicles that are identified based on hours and

         15  hours of observation, interviews and they are not

         16  really what you are referring to. I think what you

         17  are referring to are when the uniformed members stop

         18  people at various checkpoint.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This is true,

         20  but I thought it was sort of tied in if you had

         21  suspected someone for being a person who sold drugs

         22  at that particular location, that you would of

         23  course put a sketch out, or you would of course put

         24  notification within the precincts and at that point

         25  I would assume that they would also be informed of
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          2  the same information that narcotics would have

          3  pertaining to maybe a house or something where

          4  people would be driving by and people would be

          5  leaving, transference of drugs or the probability of

          6  that happening. So, they would have the same

          7  information that would come from you, I assume,

          8  right? That would make sense, wouldn't it?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: We do

         10  work very closely with the uniform tracer component

         11  that does do checkpoints, but those checkpoints are

         12  conducted by tracer units, specifically related to

         13  an ongoing narcotic condition or location or an

         14  investigation. So, it is not arbitrary that they

         15  just go to a location and set up a checkpoint. It is

         16  very specific for a specific reason as a result of

         17  an ongoing investigation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, does the

         20  Department plan to implement the drug initiative in

         21  other neighborhoods?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Not at

         23  this time. There is nothing in place right now for

         24  additional resources. And one of those reasons is

         25  really based upon listening to the City Council, the
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          2  community, the Precinct Commanders, for more

          3  uniformed presence. And that was one of the bigger

          4  decisions that came into play with the establishment

          5  of additional tracer units, to put more uniformed

          6  presence in the streets. And that is why we were

          7  able recently, especially, for example, in SATCOM,

          8  to establish five tracer units, before there was no

          9  tracer units assigned.

         10                 So, listening to the community,

         11  precinct commanders, the concerns of the members of

         12  the City Council, and also some of the things that

         13  we saw with some of our deployment and the success

         14  of some of the originally established tracer units,

         15  that is why we went to the uniformed component.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         17                 How many officers do we have, total,

         18  you know, Citywide, allocated towards Drug

         19  Initiatives?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: In the

         21  Narcotics Division right now we have 3,850, in the

         22  Narcotics Division.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: That includes the

         24  tracer units?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: No, this
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          2  is just Narcotics Division personnel. Tracer unit is

          3  actually a component of the Patrol Services Bureau.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And how many

          5  officers are on tracer units, do you know?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Each

          7  precinct of the 32 precincts that have tracer units

          8  is one lieutenant, four sergeants and 32 police

          9  officers.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Citywide or --

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: In each

         12  of those 32 precincts.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Thirty-two,

         14  okay.

         15                 So, I know you went over it in your

         16  presentation, but what specifically is the mission

         17  of the tracer units again?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Tracer

         19  units primarily address very closely working with

         20  narcotics quality of life issues. Building sweeps,

         21  as we call them, which will be in Housing Authority

         22  developments, buildings signed up for the trespass

         23  affidavit program. They will be involved in

         24  checkpoints, our quality of life conditions in the

         25  street, they respond to 911 calls related to
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          2  narcotic conditions, which frees up the precinct

          3  resources. They might look very closely at repeat

          4  narcotic prone locations where there might be

          5  multiple calls at a specific location over a period

          6  of time, resulting in a narcotic condition and they

          7  will do certain investigative tasks, or just

          8  uniformed presence in the street walking up and down

          9  the block, making the community feel a lot safer.

         10                 They also are an integral part of the

         11  model block program. Not only for that particular

         12  block, for the surrounding blocks so there is not

         13  any displacement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Be more

         15  specific and explain the trespass affidavit.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Trespass

         17  affidavit program primarily is, if you are a

         18  landlord of multiple dwelling, in the past nobody

         19  patrolled that building and some of those buildings,

         20  unlike Housing Authority developments, no one would

         21  go in there. And after speaking with landlords and

         22  tenants and so forth, when they sign up for this

         23  program it allows uniformed officers to do interior

         24  vertical patrol of those buildings, and should they

         25  encounter someone that does not have a right or a
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          2  reason to be in that location, they could be subject

          3  to arrest for trespass within that location.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So, landlords can

          5  sign up for this particular program?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, and how do

          8  they do that?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Through

         10  the precinct community affairs, or there is a number

         11  of ways through the precinct that they live in,

         12  community affairs will go there, they will have

         13  tenant meetings, explain the program so everyone

         14  that lives there understands it, and they fill out

         15  these forms and this permits us, once it is approved

         16  to conduct patrol in that building.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So they can go, a

         18  landlord can go to any precinct and request a

         19  trespass effort, to be part of the trespass

         20  affidavit program?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well, we

         22  work very closely also with the residents that

         23  reside within that building also. Because we want

         24  everybody to understand the benefits of this

         25  program.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          3                 Displacement on the model blocks,

          4  could you explain that program?

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER:

          6  Basically our model blocks, we haven't found hardly

          7  any displacement whatsoever, and I will explain to

          8  you why. With the way we investigate gangs, and that

          9  is the difference of what we do from the way we did

         10  business years ago in narcotics. Years ago it was

         11  primarily make arrests. A lot of presence, arrest a

         12  lot of people, you would displace the people, they

         13  would be in jail for a short period of time.

         14                 We found through our experience that

         15  that does not solve the long-term problem. The

         16  answer to the long-term problem is identify gang

         17  structures. Who is the top, the bottom echelon of

         18  this gang - the sellers, the look-outs, the

         19  enforcers, the managers, the sources of where the

         20  drugs for that particular organization is coming

         21  from, and you can actually, like you have seen on

         22  television, a structured formula and with each

         23  person we identify within that gang, we will know

         24  their background, whether or not they have been

         25  arrested before, what type of arrest, their

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  CRIME AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE

          2  associates and so forth. And what we try and do is

          3  what I referred to in my initial statement, bottom

          4  up, top down. Get all aspects of the organization,

          5  try and buy up in the organization, working very

          6  closely from the onset with the District Attorney's

          7  Office, so when we dismantle this organization,

          8  everybody is arrested, we ensure the best

          9  prosecution because we have been working all along

         10  with the District Attorney's Office on this, and we

         11  are more likely to get not only better convictions,

         12  but better sentencing of these individuals, and that

         13  has been very effective in many of the areas we have

         14  been to, and what that does is it doesn't allow

         15  anybody left in the organization to remain behind

         16  and continue with that particular group.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, I want to

         18  talk about the selection process. What proportion of

         19  non-supervisor uniformed personnel deployed to the

         20  Narcotics Initiatives consists of officers who have

         21  been with the Department for two years or less?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAMMERDENER:

         23  Actually none.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAMMERDENER:
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          2  Let me explain the selection process.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Right.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAMMERDENER:

          5  Basically the Narcotics Division is part of the

          6  career path. If you want to be an investigator in

          7  the Narcotic Division, you have to apply through the

          8  Career Path, you have to have a certain number of

          9  what we call Career Path points based on seniority

         10  and other parameters which is 15 points. That goes

         11  through the Chief of Personnel's Office for

         12  processing. Once you qualify to be considered for

         13  the Narcotic Division, you apply for it, you have to

         14  be -- we have a very specific interview process by a

         15  captain and two lieutenants that conduct the

         16  interview.

         17                 During the course of that interview

         18  we have a full package of this individual we are

         19  interviewing - their history, their arrest activity,

         20  civilian complaints. We know whether or not there

         21  has been any prior investigations regarding this

         22  individual. If they do pass the interview and do

         23  come in, there is a very specific training course

         24  they go through.

         25                 The only person that doesn't meet
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          2  that same parameter is if you are an undercover.

          3  Undercovers are required to have a minimum of 27

          4  months in the Department, and if they apply to be an

          5  undercover, it is again that same interview process

          6  by a captain and two lieutenants who conduct the

          7  interviews. The same paperwork is reviewed,

          8  including on everybody a financial questionnaire so

          9  we are sure of the integrity of this individual. And

         10  again, very specific training process for that

         11  individual.

         12                 For sergeants and lieutenants, there

         13  is a supervisory Committee that conducts the

         14  interviews, it is made up by a number of captains,

         15  and they have to pass that interview which would

         16  give them an ability to be selected for either the

         17  Detective Bureau or Internal Affairs or Narcotics

         18  Division.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: The same question

         20  in terms of selection for tracer units, what is the

         21  criteria for selection?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: The

         23  tracer units is primarily selected through the Chief

         24  of Patrols Office. So, those specific parameters of

         25  how they are selected will be handled by the Chief
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          2  of Patrol's Office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, on what

          4  basis might an officer be disqualified from

          5  participating in a Narcotics Initiative and are

          6  there other bases for disqualification from a tracer

          7  unit?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: For the

          9  Narcotics Division, basically during the interview

         10  process, if they fail, some of them might not even

         11  get to the interview process because by looking at,

         12  what we call their CPI, Central Personnel Index

         13  Report, it would tell us everything from prior

         14  civilian complaints, vehicle accidents, we will know

         15  whether or not there has been a prior or ongoing

         16  internal investigation regarding this individual,

         17  whether or not the financial report shows that this

         18  person is financially viable and is able not to be

         19  prone to an integrity problem, and again, how they

         20  do on the interview.

         21                 If they should pass that, they also

         22  have to go through this training course. And some of

         23  them, during the course of being trained, drop out,

         24  because it is a very vigorous and demanding training

         25  course that they go through.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What is the

          3  duration of training?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: We did

          5  have two weeks, which is now three weeks for both

          6  investigators and undercovers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What are the

          8  special -- what is it about the training that makes

          9  it special training for those particular units?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: I guess

         11  someone would come into Narcotics thinking that you

         12  just go out there and make a narcotic arrest, and

         13  that is not what it is about. It is investigation of

         14  narcotics, and that is a big difference.

         15                 The investigation of gangs, how to

         16  prepare reports, how to investigate a gang, how to

         17  look at all the available databases, can they be

         18  trained on all of the available databases and know

         19  how to correlate all of that information into an

         20  investigative process.

         21                 They learn everything from how to do

         22  tactics on buys in the streets, buy and bust, how to

         23  execute search warrants, and there are some other

         24  issues I can't, because of the confidentiality of

         25  some of the training, but it is a very rigorous long
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          2  course and very difficult for some people.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, does the

          4  cultural awareness training received by these

          5  officers differ in any way that they receive by the

          6  Street Crime Unit, or do they receive the training

          7  prior to beginning their assignment at the precinct?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER:

          9  Basically what we have done with the inception of

         10  the Northern Manhattan Initiative, all of our people

         11  have attended verbal judo and cultural awareness

         12  training. Right now we probably have 50 to 60

         13  percent of the Narcotics Division attended the

         14  cultural awareness training, the only ones that

         15  haven't are those that were prior to the start of

         16  some of these initiatives and training is being

         17  scheduled so we will have 100 percent compliance

         18  with cultural awareness training.

         19                 In the interim --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: By when?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Probably

         22  within the next three months.

         23                 In addition to that, our people

         24  attend, regularly attend precinct meetings,

         25  community meetings, because it is very important
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          2  that the investigators that work with the community

          3  attend these meetings and it is amazing when they

          4  attend these meetings how many people come forward

          5  because they want to speak directly to somebody and

          6  this is actually the person that would be handling

          7  their particular complaint.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Within the

          9  training, do the officers get training about the

         10  community, the demographics, the merchants, the

         11  leaders, prior to beginning their assignment?

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Not

         13  prior to the assignment, when they get to the

         14  location. Because the integral part of when -- you

         15  see, you have to understand, we are very turf based,

         16  and if there is more than one module within the

         17  precinct, it is not that they are involved in the

         18  entire precinct. Again, they are turf based to a

         19  specific area within that precinct of assignment, so

         20  by doing that they become a lot more aligned with

         21  the store owners, with the community and this is

         22  probably a big asset to us because we get a lot of

         23  information.

         24                 Most of our information, all of our

         25  information comes from the community itself, whether
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          2  it be through the complaints or from our informants

          3  or community leaders, or church leaders and so

          4  forth, working very closely with school safety,

          5  because we have 100 drug-free targeted schools

          6  throughout the City, so our basic resource of

          7  information is the community itself.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          9                 The tracer units, do they come under

         10  your supervision?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: They

         12  work out of the precinct that they are assigned, and

         13  they work very closely with narcotics.

         14                 Actually the precinct, the tracer

         15  captain works out of the narcotic borough, but the

         16  tracer unit itself works directly out of the

         17  precinct they are assigned to.

         18                 So, this way, unlike other units that

         19  might go between different precincts and so forth,

         20  in narcotics, not only is the tracer unit an

         21  integral part of that particular precinct, but the

         22  narcotic module is. That module only works within

         23  that precinct. They don't work outside that

         24  precinct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Does the
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          2  Department have an official public policy position

          3  as to how low level non-violent drug offenders

          4  should be dealt with by the criminal justice system

          5  to prevent future crimes?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: No. I

          7  believe that is the decision of the District

          8  Attorney. We work very closely with the District

          9  Attorneys, especially on long-term cases and buy

         10  operations and major cases, but the decision of what

         11  happens with an arrest is with the courts and the

         12  District Attorneys' Office.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         14                 The anti-gang initiative, all of this

         15  happens to be in the same precinct at the same time

         16  while you are addressing the drug initiatives?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: This

         18  Gang Investigation Division that is going to be

         19  under the Organized Crime Control Bureau, is

         20  starting in the immediate future, and basically the

         21  concept is to take components of the Detective

         22  Bureau, one narcotic module and from the Gang

         23  Investigation Unit and let them work collectively

         24  and they will be assigned to actual, I believe a

         25  specific targeted gang that might have a propensity
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          2  for violence, might be dabbling in some respects for

          3  drugs, but that remains to be seen on each

          4  individual gang that is identified and how they are

          5  going to go about it.

          6                 Once they get involved in a gang,

          7  again it is very coordinated with the modules that

          8  might be in the precinct and the precinct commanders

          9  that will all have integral input in what gets done

         10  and how things get done within that precinct and how

         11  the gang gets investigated, to make sure we don't

         12  have people walking over one another.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         14                 The initiatives in the 32 precincts I

         15  believe, you have 32 units, tracer units --

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER:

         17  Thirty-nine precincts.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, 39

         19  precincts.

         20                 In the 39 precincts, in terms of

         21  effort and resources with these initiatives, are

         22  they mostly geared toward the low level drug dealer

         23  and user? And two questions, or what is the policy

         24  and strategy against the upper echelon suppliers?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Again,
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          2  that goes back to the gang strategy. The formal way

          3  was really just to make arrests in the street, what

          4  they refer to as "buy and bust", and what you were

          5  really doing was just arresting the lowest level

          6  individual, and we never, very seldom went top up,

          7  all the way to the top. By looking at the gang

          8  structures in our number of gangs that we dismantled

          9  shows that this is a priority. You are taking out

         10  the top echelon group and it's long-term.

         11                 We work very closely with the Drug

         12  Enforcement Administration, with the US customs and

         13  other federal agencies. Of course, when it goes

         14  beyond New York City, we will track them to other

         15  cities or other countries to make sure that people

         16  that might have input in Baltimore or Schnectedy or

         17  Nassau County, we are taking them out there also.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, how are we

         19  doing with that?

         20                 I mean, the numbers look acceptable,

         21  in terms of the numbers of arrests, and drugs as a

         22  relationship to crime, as you presented to me, but

         23  in terms of the upper echelon, you know, supplies to

         24  JFK Airport, and LaGuardia Airport, Newark Airport,

         25  the piers, I know it is a never-ending battle; but
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          2  what is happening with that? How many arrests do we

          3  have as it relates to, as I would define upper

          4  echelon suppliers, that create and help to create

          5  the problems that we have in our neighborhoods?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well,

          7  the shield number I couldn't give you. I just

          8  explained the way we do things now with the gang

          9  structure. Whether it be trailers that are actually

         10  tracked coming from Jersey, or whether we allow it

         11  to go in and it gets delivered to a location in

         12  Bronx, tractor trailers, railroad cars, what comes

         13  in through Kennedy Airport, the increase in

         14  significant seizures of the drug Ecstasy coming

         15  through Kennedy Airport, that we have been on top of

         16  from almost the second seizure that was out of the

         17  ordinary, but this is why we work very closely with

         18  other city and state agencies, and also other

         19  countries.

         20                 We work very closely with Interpol,

         21  we are working closely with several police agencies

         22  in Europe. But the idea is to take the top, because

         23  if you don't take the top, it just -- they can hire

         24  other people and continue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But right now, if
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          2  I hear your response correctly, you cannot supply us

          3  with a general number. For instance, in 1998 we had

          4  100 high echelon busts in the City of New York.

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: No, I

          6  couldn't give you that number.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          8                 So, where could we get that answer

          9  from? Where in terms of just knowing that our

         10  borders are covered and initiatives are going on, I

         11  know that the DAs have, especially in Queens have an

         12  initiative that we supply money to the City Council

         13  in terms of their budget, but I am interested in

         14  that, as well as, and you might not be able to

         15  answer this, the criteria of asset forfeiture.

         16  Because I am a proponent that where, and I hope that

         17  I will be able to, before my term is up, get the --

         18  wherever the drugs, the big sales and busts are

         19  made, be it the stores, and other establishments, I

         20  think that that asset should be turned over to the

         21  community for a day care center, for an educational

         22  center, something that the community can put into

         23  place, as opposed to some of the landlords who rent

         24  places, don't take responsibility for the activity.

         25  They are informed that, you know, you padlock the
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          2  place, it goes to the DA, they send a lawyer down

          3  and the next day somebody else opens up the

          4  establishment and they don't lose rent.

          5                 I am looking into that, and I think a

          6  year and a half ago I had a conversation with DA

          7  Brown in relationship to how that works, because a

          8  lot of times community people call in, they give

          9  information, they see that a place is raided, they

         10  see that it is padded up, and then a week later they

         11  see it opened, and sometimes it takes the initiative

         12  from them to report any crime because they feel

         13  nothing is going to be done and they don't

         14  understand the nature that that property was owned

         15  by someone who was way at arm's length is only

         16  collecting rent and it really doesn't matter who

         17  rents it, and we wind up giving it back to that

         18  person. So we are going to have to find a way to

         19  deal with that.

         20                 But I think that part of the asset

         21  forfeiture should be that the assets of particular

         22  establishments should be turned over to responsible

         23  community groups, businesses and people trying to

         24  generate economic development or various commercial

         25  strips. That is just my comment. It is something
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          2  that you really can't do anything about. But if you

          3  could, whoever the appropriate individual is, supply

          4  the Committee with some percentage as to the number

          5  of higher echelon busts. I don't have to know the

          6  specifics but just in terms of the count, so that

          7  the Initiative, we can view it in its totality, as

          8  opposed to just a lot of arrests and we don't know

          9  exactly the low level, mid-level or higher echelon.

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: See,

         11  what is difficult with that is the different

         12  variances in each investigation.

         13                 For example, some of our

         14  investigations go back to, for example, Columbia,

         15  where working with their government, people are

         16  arrested, we have extradition processing, going back

         17  and forth. We have other cases that go, it starts

         18  with a gun buy case in Baisely Park where we bought

         19  something like 20 something guns, one of our

         20  undercovers, that went back to Virginia. Not only

         21  did we take out Baisley Park, but we took out the

         22  store in Virginia with the Alcohol Tobacco and

         23  Firearms Bureau.

         24                 So, these things don't always stay

         25  within the City, we take it to wherever we can
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          2  possibly lead us to and that particular law

          3  enforcement agency that could handle that end of it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But what I am

          5  trying to clarify and define is, number one, to make

          6  the Council aware of exactly what you are doing, how

          7  well you are doing, or how not so well you are

          8  doing, what may be needed to do better, and in

          9  addition to that, making the community aware that

         10  their efforts, in terms of whatever they are doing

         11  in the various precinct councils or planning boards

         12  is not in vain, so we can have a wholesome approach,

         13  but we have to take a look at the up side and the

         14  down side.

         15                 For, instance, when you mentioned

         16  Baisley Park, 25 guns leading to Virginia, that

         17  happens to be my district, all right? So, I can

         18  speak on behalf of my district and thank you in

         19  terms of eliminating 25 handguns, I don't care where

         20  they came from or where did you trace them to

         21  Virginia. But there are other things, too, that we

         22  are unaware of, that I am unaware of that I could

         23  attest to in terms of just constituents walking in

         24  the office.

         25                 On my way down here I had a
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          2  complaint, I will see you after the hearing, because

          3  I have some addresses to give you, okay? But all I

          4  am saying is this is an approach that has to be used

          5  by everyone concerned, all right? And that is why I

          6  want to make sure that the effort is well

          7  understood, so that the constructive criticism can

          8  be on target and not just this blatant statement to

          9  agree or disagree. We want real issues in terms of

         10  what we are up against, and drugs are still going on

         11  and people are still complaining. They are coming by

         12  my office and other Council members' offices. And as

         13  part of this Committee there is going to be someone

         14  from each borough, representing the five boroughs to

         15  have their input into where we are and where we are

         16  going.

         17                 How many misdemeanor drug arrests

         18  have there been so far in this county as a result of

         19  the drug initiative? Is it more than the same period

         20  of the previous calendar year?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Now our

         22  total of misdemeanor narcotic arrests are 21,955,

         23  which is about four percent below last year.

         24                 Some of that is related to more of a

         25  focus on smokeshops, nuisance abatement and search
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          2  warrants, as opposed to some of the street

          3  conditions that might exist that could be directly

          4  handled by the precinct SNU units. We wanted our

          5  people to focus a little bit more on the

          6  investigative aspects of narcotic gangs, which would

          7  have a long-term effect on correcting the conditions

          8  in a particular neighborhood. And that is why even

          9  with the first phase of our smoke shop initiative

         10  with 70 locations Citywide, that was a lot more bang

         11  for the buck, as opposed to having narcotic

         12  officers, investigators looking at somebody smoking

         13  marijuana in public. That is something that is more

         14  readily addressed with SNU and with the Precinct

         15  Narcotic Enforcement units, as opposed to

         16  investigators that orders the source of that

         17  marijuana.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So, prior to last

         19  year or this current year, those incidents of

         20  smoking marijuana in public, et cetera, were

         21  normally arrestable offenses that you all would have

         22  done last year?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: We look

         24  very closely at the type of the arrest, locations of

         25  the arrest.
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          2                 For example, when we see an

          3  inordinate number of arrests in a particular

          4  location and we can track all of this, if there is

          5  no gang identified, it is not doing me any good to

          6  keep going there and making arrests, because they

          7  are not, again, focusing on the main problem or the

          8  main source of the narcotics for that particular

          9  location. So that is why to our narcotic unit that

         10  works in headquarters that tracks everything in

         11  computer databases and works through also the

         12  narcotic borough commanders, we track very closely

         13  what is the conditions, and what exactly are we

         14  doing at that location. So to make sure we have a

         15  very focused approach to eliminating that location,

         16  as opposed to just going there and making minor

         17  arrests and looking for the source of the narcotics

         18  that are supplying that location.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But if you come

         20  across that, in terms of information, you will pass

         21  that on to the SNU units?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Only

         23  very strict parameters. SNU only we work with with

         24  outside locations, and it depends upon the type of

         25  narcotic at the location and the severity of the
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          2  condition.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: That is

          5  why we work very closely with the SNU units at the

          6  precinct levels.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: All right.

          8                 How many felony arrests have there

          9  been so far this calendar year as a result of the

         10  Initiative?

         11                 And compare that to the same period

         12  last year.

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Last

         14  year -- this is just narcotics arrests. I am not

         15  giving non-narcotic felony arrests because sometimes

         16  we make a lot of non-narcotic arrests, because we

         17  are out there and you get into robberies and so

         18  forth. Right now it is 16,255, which is about nine,

         19  almost 10 percent above last year.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         21                 Let me ask, is this valid or invalid,

         22  that the number of narcotics search warrants

         23  decreased in Fiscal Year 1998, especially given the

         24  Department's increased aggressiveness towards drug

         25  activity, what is the fiscal year to date number of
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          2  narcotics search warrants, and what is the projected

          3  number of narcotic search warrants for Fiscal 1999?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Calendar

          5  Year in 1998 was 3,001 search warrants. Right now

          6  year-to-date in 1999 was 1,577 which is about an

          7  almost 11 percent increase over the same time last

          8  year.

          9                 So, actually we are executing, we are

         10  about ten percent ahead of last year's numbers on

         11  search warrants.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: I would

         13  just like to follow that up by clarifying what we

         14  are doing on a calendar year, so if there is a

         15  fiscal year versus calendar year problem, that may

         16  be where the interpretation is a problem.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, you are

         18  dealing with January through December --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Versus July

         21  through June?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TUFFY: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, well noted.

         24                 How many search warrants resulted in

         25  more drug seizures than street level arrests?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well,

          3  for the most part, when we do arrests on the street,

          4  our arrests on the street are primarily related to a

          5  buy operation. We are not going to buy big drugs on

          6  the streets. You are going to buy, where it is crack

          7  you might buy one or two vials, if it is heroin you

          8  might buy one or two bags of heroin, and that is why

          9  we buy up into the organization. Of course, when you

         10  want to target the whole organization you have to

         11  buy felony weight, and you keep buying up into the

         12  organization because you get felony weight, you get

         13  people on longer prison terms and so forth.

         14                 The search warrants, it is very

         15  variable what we get on search warrants. Sometimes

         16  we get several kilos on search warrants, or like

         17  this morning, in the Northern Manhattan Initiative

         18  in the 33 Precinct, we did about five search

         19  warrants this morning and we came up with, right now

         20  before I came here, we started with eight guns and

         21  now up to 11 guns and a bunch of contraband which is

         22  yet to be counted. This was heroin and cocaine. So,

         23  it varies on what we find in some of these

         24  locations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.
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          2                 Does the Narcotics Unit use stop and

          3  frisk -- well, let me put it another way.

          4                 The Department's use of stop and

          5  frisk has been under scrutiny. Are stop and frisks a

          6  mainstay strategy of the drug initiative?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: No, it

          8  is not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: When do you do

         10  stop and frisks?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: We do

         12  stop and frisk, but basically our encounters with

         13  people is based upon some type of preliminary prior

         14  investigation.

         15                 For example, if it is in the street,

         16  what we call a buy and bust, an undercover might

         17  have purchased from somebody, walked off the set and

         18  some time in the immediate future the team would

         19  move in and arrest the individual that made the

         20  sale.

         21                 Other things are long term operations

         22  or investigations where buys are made over a period

         23  of time into an organization. Sometimes it might be

         24  30 days and sometimes it might be up to a year and a

         25  half where we are still investigating an
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          2  organization.

          3                 But the basis of what we do is

          4  investigation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          6                 Are you expanding the drug free

          7  schools and parks? That program Drug-Free Zones, is

          8  the Drug Initiative a part of that that you can

          9  cover?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Yes, it

         11  is. Right now we have 100 drug-free targeted

         12  schools. We have specific school modules that are

         13  assigned in each of the boroughs, two modules in

         14  each borough that specifically address schools,

         15  prioritizing the worst schools.

         16                 Now with the establishment of school

         17  security, it is a very focused approach and exchange

         18  of information on some of the problems.

         19                 In addition to the school modules,

         20  there is also a responsibility of the turf-based

         21  module that might be assigned within that

         22  prospective area of one of these schools.

         23                 The same thing with the drug-free

         24  parks, whether it be Washington Square Park in

         25  Manhattan or other parks throughout the City, very
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          2  specific enforcement, a lot of those drug-free parks

          3  have to be constantly changed because when we see a

          4  drop in the conditions that are there, working with

          5  the borough commanders, precinct commanders and

          6  community leaders, what is a place that maybe we

          7  should focus our resources a little bit more on may

          8  some other location.

          9                 So, that is always fluctuating with

         10  the drug-free parks, and also the identification of

         11  the drug-free targeted schools.

         12                 However, whether they are identified

         13  as drug-free targeted schools or not there is the

         14  turf-based module that is responsible for the

         15  enforcement within the area of that school.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Do you have

         17  available a breakout of the arrests around schools

         18  and in parks?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Schools

         20  is 14,580. This is year to date. And year to date at

         21  parks is 560 arrests. With another 711 arrests in

         22  the immediate vicinity of that park.

         23                 For example, if we look at Washington

         24  Square Park, some of the activity has been dispersed

         25  up to two blocks away and we have tracked that
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          2  displacement and that is why we make arrests right

          3  over there, we track them right over to the next

          4  location.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Do you think that

          6  percentage is going to go up in comparison to last

          7  year? The arrests in and around schools and parks.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Well, we

          9  are hoping it might decrease. Because when we look

         10  at what we do in schools, again it is very

         11  coordinated.

         12                 We work very closely, for example,

         13  with the Warrant Division. In the immediate vicinity

         14  of the school, what are the outstanding criminal

         15  court warrants, and can we expedite those warrants.

         16  With the gang investigation units, are there any

         17  gangs affiliated with that school and the conditions

         18  with school safety?

         19                 So, what we try and do is extend the

         20  area surrounding these schools so that we address

         21  all crime at all levels. But we have been very

         22  successful in some of the locations.

         23                 I know when I worked in Bronx, when I

         24  was the Bronx Detective Commander, we were doing

         25  this for a long time and it was very successful on
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          2  going from one block almost to two blocks away,

          3  almost to three blocks away and extending the

          4  perimeter around the school you could actually say

          5  we have really enlightened and increased the

          6  conditions to make it more conducive of a safety

          7  area for the children that go to that school.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          9                 Will the model block program be

         10  expanded?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Model

         12  block program is through the Commissioner and the

         13  First Deputy Commissioner. We have ongoing meetings

         14  identifying locations, and this is actually

         15  primarily picked by the Borough Commanders

         16  identifying locations, based upon the specific

         17  problem in an area, and also the input from the

         18  community and can we get their participation in the

         19  model block, because that is a big key to the

         20  success of model block, community participation.

         21  Because we can go in there and dismantle the drug

         22  gang but you need the community to take an active

         23  role in taking charge of their community afterwards,

         24  and also with the City resources that will be

         25  provided. For example, in my presentation, whether
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          2  it be lighting, school programs, cleaning vacant

          3  lots, painting and so forth, graffiti removal, this

          4  is all part of that model block program.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          6                 All right, I think this would not be

          7  really as meaningful, I mean everything up to now

          8  has been very meaningful information, in terms of

          9  just taking a snapshot of where we are in

         10  relationship to the first meeting that I had going

         11  through Police Strategy 3, there appears to be some

         12  sort of movement that is more clearly defined than

         13  the first meeting, it was so broad and nebulous, you

         14  really couldn't grab it.

         15                 But there is another reality, and

         16  that is based on the unfortunate situation with Mr.

         17  Diallo. Have you, the Initiative, encountered any

         18  opposition from the community in terms of their

         19  cooperation with the Drug Initiative?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: No. No.

         21  Our people, like I said before, are turf-based. They

         22  work with us specifically in that precinct, some of

         23  them for a long period of time.

         24                 When there is more than one module in

         25  the precinct and they are even divided further
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          2  within specific boundaries within the precinct, they

          3  get to know very well the members of the community.

          4                 Like I said these narcotic complaint

          5  investigations that we investigate, that is based

          6  upon input from the community. But when we are

          7  investigating these things during different phases

          8  of the investigation, we might speak with people in

          9  the community, and everybody wants drugs removed

         10  from their community. And they are very helpful to

         11  us and provide us with a lot of information, an when

         12  we attend these community meetings, I think it is

         13  good for them to learn that even when they call in

         14  something anonymously, there is a full court

         15  investigation, the same type of the addresses you

         16  are going to give me. There is no difference in what

         17  we do from somebody that calls something in

         18  anonymously or whether somebody like yourself gives

         19  me something to investigate. We do the same full

         20  court investigation on it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Because

         23  the object is to remove those drugs, not just

         24  correct the condition from the short term but for

         25  the long-term.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, so let me

          3  ask you in another area, does the Narcotic

          4  Initiative monitor probationists? The Nightwatch

          5  Program?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Okay, we

          7  work very closely with Parole and Probation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes.

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Okay?

         10  For example, we are very interested in narcotic

         11  parolees. We work very closely with Parole, we have

         12  specialized initiatives with Parole, which might

         13  include accompanying them on home visits, speaking

         14  with parolees, with the parole officer to obtain any

         15  information that they might have on certain narcotic

         16  conditions in the community, but this is one of

         17  those other agencies we work very closely with.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         19                 Well, Chief, let me just say that the

         20  areas that I wanted to cover were, and that have

         21  been covered, and that was my goal, was the

         22  personnel allocation, the tracer units, the

         23  selection process, the training, the supervision,

         24  community relations and precinct coordination,

         25  misdemeanor drug arrests, and the performance
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          2  measures, displacement, drug-free zones, the model

          3  block program and the last being the operation

          4  Nightwatch, all of those areas were areas that were

          5  in Police Strategy 3 but were not down the road in

          6  terms of the kind of implementation that I am

          7  hearing now. Not that I am satisfied, but at least

          8  we are at a point where now we can begin to take a

          9  look at the impact to all of this effort and

         10  personnel, has gone towards safeguarding the

         11  community. I know we need a lot more, because drugs

         12  are still out there, I am still concerned about the

         13  importation of drugs and guns as a relation to drugs

         14  into the City. But at this particular point I can

         15  only conclude this hearing by saying I want to thank

         16  you for your very professional manner and the

         17  information that you supplied to us.

         18                 I will turn it over to the staff

         19  analyst who will take a look at it and who will

         20  determinate a lot of this information for

         21  consumption and comment to the rest of my colleagues

         22  in the City Council, and we will be having another

         23  hearing probably on this specific issue to see where

         24  we are going and I hope that you would come back and

         25  see how far we are going in about six months.
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          2                 In the meantime, anything that you

          3  can think of that you can supply to the Subcommittee

          4  for consideration for implementation or developing

          5  legislation to assist the Department in its efforts,

          6  feel free to contact the Staff Analyst or have the

          7  Commissioner call me or you call me, I take calls,

          8  and we can discuss it.

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF KAMMERDENER: Thank

         10  you for the opportunity of allowing us to address

         11  the Council.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         13                 The meeting is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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